
Gloucestershire Schools Forum

Thursday 9 January 2020 at 2.00 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester



Date Published: 2 January 2020     



Date Published: 2 January 2020     

Gloucestershire Schools Forum
Thursday 9 January 2020

2.00 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Joanne Bolton

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Forum must declare an interest in any agenda item where 
the outcome may give them a direct pecuniary advantage or avoid a 
disadvantage.  A form is available at the back of the meeting room.

Joanne Bolton

3  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To receive any public questions.  Questions can be asked on the day or 
sent to the Clerk before the meeting.  A written answer will be provided if 
questions are received 3 clear working days before the date of the 
meeting.  The Chair will advise timescale for any questions asked on the 
day of the meeting or received less than 3 working days before the 
meeting.

Joanne Bolton

4  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2019 and note 
actions.

Joanne Bolton

5  GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL BUDGET CONSULTATION 
2020/21 (Pages 9 - 12)

Suzanne Hall

6  DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT 2020/21 (Pages 13 - 22) Neil Egles, 
Philip Haslett

7  EARLY YEARS FUNDING 2020/21 (Pages 23 - 28) Suzanne Hall

8  HIGH NEEDS (Pages 29 - 42) Philip Haslett

9  SCHOOLS FORUM WORKPLAN 2020 (Pages 43 - 46) Philip Haslett

10  F40 Philip Haslett

(a) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 



Date Published: 2 January 2020     

Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Joanne Bolton, Clerk to the Forum
:01452 324197/e-mail: joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

(b) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Will Members please sign the attendance list.

mailto:joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk


1

GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM
Minutes of a meeting held on Thursday 14 November 2019

in the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

Present:

Brian Bartlett - Primary School Governors (Academy)
Colin Belford - Secondary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Sara Byrne - Primary School Governors (Maintained)
Elisa Entwistle - Alternative Provision Schools
Andrew Harris (Chair) - Community Representative 
Kirsten Harrison - Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Dan Johnson - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Lisa Jones - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
David Metcalf - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Sarah Murphy - Unions
Alexander Norman - Secondary School Governors (Academy)
Stuart Wilson - Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Substitutes:

Observers: Cllr Richard Boyles, Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Children's Safeguarding and Early Years

Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cabinet Member for Economy, Education 
and Skills

Officers: Chris Spencer, Director of Children’s Services
Tim Browne, Director of Education
Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and
Development
Neil Egles, Finance Manager, Schools Strategy and Capital
Suzanne Hall, Finance Business Partner
Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Adviser and Clerk to the
Forum.

Apologies: Matthew Bishop, Primary School Governors (Maintained)
Penny Chislett, Post-16 Education
Peter Hales, Primary School Governors (Academy)
Kate Hawkins, Special School Governors
Amanda Horniman, Early Years Providers
Rachel Howie, Gloucester Diocese
Liam Jordan, Clifton Diocese
Gwyneth Keen, Early Years Providers
Will Morgan, Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

2 

Jacqui Phillips, Secondary School Governors (Academy)
Steve Savory, Primary School Headteachers (Academy)
Clare Steel, Special School Headteachers
Adam White, Secondary School Governors (Maintained)
Rob Wilcock, Secondary School Governors (Academy)

28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

29. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions had been received. 

30. MINUTES 

30.1 The minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 September 2019, were approved 
as a correct record and signed by the chair.

30.2 Sarah Murphy, Trade Union representative, read out a statement made by Luke 
Sibieta, Research Fellow, at the Institute of Fiscal Studies.  She reported that he 
had stated since 2009-10 school funding per pupil had fallen by 8% in real terms in 
England.  The government’s new spending plans for education should be near 
enough sufficient to reverse cuts by 2022-23; in addition, the government was 
continuing to provide compensation to schools for higher pension contributions on 
top of this.  In his statement he had outlined that the package represented a large 
increase in spending per pupil, taking it back to about the same level it was in 2009-
10.  However, a 13-year period of no net growth in school spending per pupil, after 
inflation, still represented a significant squeeze on school budgets when considered 
in historical terms. The Trade Union representative emphasised that school staff 
and governors should be made aware of this.

31. AMENDMENT TO THE MEMBERSHIP STRUCTURE OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM 
(SPECIAL SCHOOL REPRESENTATION) 

31.1 The Forum considered a request from the Gloucestershire Association of Special 
School Headteachers (GASSH) to increase the special school representation on 
the Forum.  

31.2 The Forum noted that there was currently one special school governor and one 
headteacher representative within its membership.   A question was raised on 
whether the current number of special schools representatives within the Forum’s 
membership, was already in proportion to the number of special schools in the 
county.  It was acknowledged that this was likely the premise on which the special 
school representation was based on when the Forum was established.  However, 
due to the prominent focus of the High Needs strategy and funding on the Schools 
Forum agenda now, and in the future, members felt that it would now be prudent to 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

3 

enhance the representation of special schools within the Schools Forum 
membership.  

31.3 The Forum agreed to increase the special school representation by one additional 
headteacher and one additional governor, and for those sub-groups, to be 
represented by one academy representative and one maintained representative 
(aligning it with the primary and secondary school phases) as outlined below:

Special Schools Headteachers: 2 (one academy representative and one 
maintained representative)
Special School Governors: 2 (one academy representative and one 
maintained representative).

31.4 The Forum’s membership structure outlined in its Constitution would be amended to 
reflect those changes. The Forum noted that an election would now be undertaken 
for:

1 Special School Headteacher (academy)
1 Special School Governor (maintained).
ACTION: Joanne Bolton.

32. SCHOOL FUNDING 2020/21 

32.1 Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development, presented the report 
which provided an update on:-  the current forecast for the High Needs budget for 
2019/20; the data and evidence to support a review of special school places in the 
county; the rate of permanent exclusion in the county; and on the progress in 
developing primary local inclusion clusters and the proposed projects.  

32.2 He reported that the pressure on the High Needs budget was continuing due to the 
increasing levels of Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND) that were 
being identified which was resulting in a continued rise in the number of Education 
Health and Care Plans (EHCP).  In 2015 the local authority maintained 2,245 EHC 
Plans or Statement of Special Education Needs, in January 2019 the figure was at 
3,859.  If the trend of yearly increases was sustained at the current levels then the 
indication was that the local authority would receive an additional 350 plans a year, 
which would have a significant impact on the High Needs Block.

32.3 The current forecast showed an in-year overspend of the High Needs Block of 
£6,913,500.  This would move the overall deficit for the DSG to £9,502,400.  The 
Forum was informed of the main areas of overspend, and the plans for deficit 
recovery as outlined in the report.

32.4 Officers indicated that in 2020/21 Gloucestershire could expect to see an additional 
£6.13m allocated to High Needs funding.  However, this was not sufficient to bridge 
the current in-year deficit. The long-term plan outlined in the High Needs strategy to 
provide earlier intervention and support to meet need, prevent escalation and 
ensure access to mainstream education was critical.  However, given the continued 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

4 

rise in EHCPs, there would be increased focus on how there could be a short-term 
impact on the overspend.  

32.5 In response to a question on hospital education, Tim Browne, Director of Education, 
explained that this area, as with Alternative Provision in general, was experiencing 
an increase in demand.  In response to this growth in demand the hospital 
education operating model had been reviewed and services recommissioned.  The 
on-line learning provision was proving to be successful, and a telepresence robot – 
AV1 was being piloted.  This robot was helping children in hospital or being cared 
for at home to remain part of their school community, by virtually taking the child’s 
place in the classroom, enabling the child to participate in class.  If the two-year 
pilot project was successful then the scheme may be expanded.  

32.6 The Forum was informed of the outcome of an analysis of the current trends in both 
independent special school placements and referrals to special schools.  From the 
analysis the local authority had ascertained that additional special school places 
would need to be commissioned for 2020/21; and the focus on prevention through 
early intervention and support was critical to reduce the rising level of need in the 
system.  A new model was being developed to help fund and support this.

32.7 One key area identified in the analysis was that a significant proportion of the 
reason why special schools could not meet need, and an independent special 
school placement was needed, was due to key stage 3/4 boys with social, 
emotional mental health (SEMH) needs.  Officers acknowledged that this would 
need to be addressed as part of the planning of the future provision in the county.  
The plans to build a new 75 place 11-16 SEMH special school, would only provide 
part of the provision needed.  In the short-term discussions were taking place with 
the existing special schools to determine whether they could accommodate 
additional pupils.  As a result of the increase in demand, the equivalent of a new 
special school will be needed, whether by expanding existing schools or a new 
build, in addition to the planned 75 place SEMH special school.

32.8 It was acknowledged that given the growth in children with SENDs requiring a 
special school place, any new special school would need to have clear admission 
criteria, so that allocations could be managed appropriately.  

32.9 The Forum agreed that engagement with the Gloucestershire Association of 
Special School Headteachers (GASSH) should take place to explore how additional 
special school places could be commissioned for 2020/21; and to understand more 
fully why the needs of some pupils could not be met by maintained special schools 
and put in place support to enable them to be met in county, rather than more 
expensive independent special school provision.  It was noted that officers would 
begin this process by meeting with GASSH on 22 November 2019.
ACTION: Philip Haslett

33. HIGH NEEDS 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

5 

33.1 The Forum received an update on the work being done to transform the way in 
which Gloucestershire utilised High Needs funding to support inclusion and thus 
reduce rates of permanent exclusion, such as through the primary Local Inclusion 
Clusters (LINCs).  The Schools Forum Working Group on Exclusions had 
considered the outline proposal, and on a whole, members of this Group were in 
agreement with the key objectives, but looked forward to receiving further details.

33.2 There was a degree of concern amongst Forum members about how the objectives 
would be achieved and the associated financial arrangements, and timeline of 
implementation.  It was noted that further details would be considered by the 
Working Group at its next meeting on 27 November 2019, with an update to the 
Forum at its next meeting on 9 January 2020.  A pilot project to test the new way of 
working would be rolled out in the spring of 2020. 

33.3 In response to a question, Tim Browne, Director of Education, confirmed that home 
to school transport provision was funded by the County Council not the Dedicated 
Schools Grant.  The Forum acknowledged that managed moves would be 
challenging in more rural areas due to the distances involved; officers accepted that 
there would need to be some flexibility within the home to school transport policy to 
counter this. 

33.4 The Forum noted that there had been a significant decrease in the number of 
places being commissioned at Alternative Provision schools in the county.  Elisa 
Entwistle, Alternative Provision representative, expressed strong concerns that due 
to the move towards no permanent primary exclusions, primary headteachers felt 
obliged to keep children in their schools, whom would otherwise have been 
allocated a place at an Alternative Provision school.  She was also aware that some 
children were being allocated provision at a special school, whilst remaining on the 
roll of their home school.  The Alternative Provision representative was concerned 
that the needs of those children were not being met appropriately, and stressed that 
any long-term decisions on the future of the new model for LINCs should not be 
made on a short-term ‘halo’. She emphasised that there would still need to be 
provision within the model which was sustainable and long-term and that could 
meet a child’s needs effectively.

33.5 In response, the Head of Education Strategy and Development, explained that a 
pilot project was being carried out, whereby pupils at risk of permanent exclusion 
were being allocated provision within a special school.  By doing this the aim was to 
assess and understand the child’s needs within the special school setting and then 
for the child to transition back into a mainstream school with a plan in place for 
moving forward.  A number of referrals for this type of provision were being 
received from primary headteachers. He explained that that if this pilot was 
successful then it would be expanded.  In response to concerns over primary 
school headteachers holding pupils in their schools who would otherwise have 
been excluded, he explained that a survey would be undertaken to determine the 
position schools were in, he commented that he was keen to understand the data 
on this.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

6 

33.6 The Forum considered the mainstream EHCP top-up rates for 2020/21.  There 
were concerns raised that by not increasing the EHCP top-up rates, more inclusive 
schools would be financially penalised.  However, members acknowledged that 
given the current High Needs deficit, an increase to the mainstream EHCP top-up 
rates would at this stage be untenable.  The Forum subsequently agreed that the 
top-up rates for EHCPs for 2020/21 would be maintained at the current rates.

34. F40 

34.1 Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development, introduced a report 
which provided an analysis of School Funding Announcements September 2019, 
produced by the National Education Union.  The report had formed the core part of 
the discussion at the last meeting of the f40.

34.2 The Chair posed the question of why the bar charts showing the shortfall of the 
government’s core schools budget allocation to the Schools Block and the High 
Needs Block, over the years 2015-2023, had not shown the cumulative amounts, 
which would have been significantly higher.  

34.3 The Head of Education Strategy and Development reported that the f40 local 
authorities were still being funded lower than other local authorities, mainly in more 
affluent parts of the country.  The f40 was continuing to emphasise the importance 
of engaging and lobbying for a fairer school funding deal.

34.4 The Forum noted the report.

Chairman

Meeting concluded at 3.17 pm

Page 6



 

Schools Forum Meeting on 14 November 2019 
 

Action Sheet 
 
TOPIC 
 
 

 
ACTION 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

 
OUTCOME 
 

1. Amendment 
to the membership 
structure of the 
Schools Forum – 
Special School 
representation 

The Forum’s membership structure, as set out in 
the Constitution, to be amended to reflect the 
agreed increase to the special school 
representation.  
 
An election to be undertaken for: 
 1 Special School Headteacher (academy) 
 1 Special School Governor (maintained). 

Joanne Bolton Completed. 
 
 
 
 
Lyn Dance has been duly elected as the 
Special School Headteacher (academy) 
representative. 
 
No nominations have been received for the 
Special School Governor (maintained) 
representative.  This seat is currently 
vacant.  
 

2. School 
Funding 2020/21 

The F Officers to engage with the Gloucestershire 
Association of Special School Headteachers to 
explore how additional special school places could 
be commissioned for 2020/21; and to understand 
more fully why the needs of some pupils could not 
be met by maintained special schools and put in 
place support to enable them to be met in county, 
rather than more expensive independent special 
school provision.  Officers are due to begin this 
process by meeting with GASSH on 22 November 
2019. 
 

Philip Haslett Ongoing 
 
An initial discussion has taken place with the 
Gloucestershire Association of Special 
School Headteachers and responses from 
schools are now being received and 
compiled. 
 
 

 

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 

Gloucestershire County Council  Budget Consultation 
2020/21  

 

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

9th January 2020 

Type of Decision For information and comment as part of the consultation 

Background 
Documents 

 
Council Strategy and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 – 2020/21 
Council Report: 13th February 2019 
 
Cabinet Report: 20th December 2019: MTFS 2020/21 to 2022/23. Link for 
full report – Item 7 on the Agenda 

 
Gloucestershire County Council Cabinet report 20 December 2019 MTFS 
2020/21 
 

Author Sue Hall, Finance Business Partner   

Extracts of report presented by: 
Paul Blacker: Director of Finance 
Steve Mawson: Director of Corporate Resources 

 

Purpose of Report 
 

 

To inform the Schools Forum of the budget strategy and draft details for 
2020/21 and the MTFS covering the period 2020/21 to 2022/23. 
 

Key 
Recommendations 

 

That the report is noted and that any comments are fed back through the 
Council’s consultation process by 17th January 2020. 

Resource 
Implications 

 

The report covers the Council’s overall budget and the specific financial 
implications for Children and Families. 
 

 
Summary of Information 

The attached report is the summary MTFS position presented to Cabinet on the 20th December 

2019 for the whole Council.  The link to the detailed report is included above but a number of 

specific annexes relating to the overall budget and specifically to Children and Families are 

attached for information. These include:- 

 Annex 3: Budget Summary by Service Area  for the Council 

 Annex 2: Budget movements in services for Children and Families 

 

In summary it is proposed that Children and Families achieve cost reductions of £0.57 million 

and receive cost increases of £14.947 million, a net increase in budget of £14.377 million. This 

increases by an additional £2.161 if you include the Social Care ring fenced grant in 2019/20 

which is now rolled into the base budget. The grant was allocated 50/50 between Adults and 

Children’s. See annex for details of the proposed budget changes. The Council’s financial 

planning cycle has recognised the pressure on the children’s and families budget during 

2019/20 (forecast overspend of £11.916 million as at November forecast) and this is reflected in 

the investment being made. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9232/Public%20reports%20pack%20Friday%2020-Dec-2019%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g9232/Public%20reports%20pack%20Friday%2020-Dec-2019%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10


2 
 

Annex 3 – Budget Summary by Service Area 
 

 

 

 The split of the 2020/21 proposed budget to employee and non employee budget areas is estimated based on initial plans, however this is subject to 
further change when these initiatives have been developed further. 

 

Medium Term Financial Strategy – 2020/21 Budget – Overall Summary

2019/20 

Employee 

Related 

Budget

2019/20 Non - 

Employee 

Expenditure 

Budget

2019/20 

Gross 

Expenditure 

Budget

2019/20 

Income

2019/20 

Revised 

MTFS 

Base 

Budget

Pay 

Inflation 

Costs

Cost 

Increases

Cost 

Reductions

Proposed 

2020/21 

Budget

Cash 

Increase / 

Decrease 

Percentage 

Increase / 

Decrease

Budget Area £000's £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Adults        35,871            144,985         180,856 -35,121   145,735         712         7,986 -4,799 149,634          3,899 2.7%

Vulnerable Children        37,093              50,382           87,475 -575     86,900         724       12,172 -20       99,776       12,876 14.8%

Other Children Services          9,177                8,422           17,599 -887     16,712         189         1,862 -550       18,213          1,501 9.0%

Economy, Environment & 

Infrastructure
       15,315              65,207           80,522 -15,318     65,204         305         7,806 -1,118       72,197          6,993 10.7%

Prevention & Wellbeing          2,059              30,246           32,305 -100     32,205           63         2,373 -327       34,314          2,109 6.5%

GFRS & Regulatory Services        15,353                3,511           18,864 -619     18,245         306            889                      -       19,440          1,195 6.5%

Corporate Resources        26,929              12,526           39,455 -7,130     32,325         537         3,906 -1,824       34,944          2,619 8.1%

Technical and Countywide 11,920      30,269            42,189         -2,536     39,653           20            942 -950 39,665                    12 0.0%

Total Budget 153,717 345,548 499,265 -62,286 436,979      2,856       37,936 -9,588 468,183       31,204 7.1%

P
age 10



3 
 

 

Annex 2 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 11



4 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



1 Introduction

This paper updates the Forum on the latest information available on updated census 
data and the Dedicated Schools Grant for 2020/21.  The Forum will now need to 
make recommendations on the funding formula for mainstream schools and early 
years providers (see separate paper) and note the latest position on the central 
school services block and high needs block (see separate paper) of the DSG.

2 Dedicated Schools Grant

2.1 Summary

Dedicated Schools Grant 2020/21

Schools’ Forum 
Date

9th January 2020

Type of Decision For decision

Background 
Documents

30th August 2019 Prime Minister announcement about £14billion 
extra funding Link 
Schools Forum report on school funding 14th November 2019

Author Phil Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development

Neil Egles, Finance Manager – Schools Strategy and Capital

Purpose of Report To report on the implications of the census data and Dedicated 
Schools Grant (DSG) updates for 2020/21 and to make 
recommendations on the final funding formula for mainstream 
schools

Key 
Recommendations

The Forum is asked to:
1. Note the Dedicated Schools Grant settlement for 2020/21.
2. Recommend the council agree the school funding formula for 

2020/21, as set out in Annex A
3. Agree that the balance on the schools block can be used at 

year end as a one off contribution towards the high needs 
deficit

4. The Forum agrees the allocation of the central schools services 
block as set in section 4 below.

Resource 
Implications

The 2020/21 DSG announced on 19th December 2019 totals 
£479.9m.
This represents an increase in the total DSG of £27.6m (6.1%) from 
2019/20 and allows the national funding formula factor rates to be 
applied in full at their 100% level.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

https://schoolfinancialsuccess.us13.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6262ca36ac03845f346f25913&id=54ca847a3b&e=dc8e04b92f
https://schoolfinancialsuccess.us13.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6262ca36ac03845f346f25913&id=54ca847a3b&e=dc8e04b92f


The DfE announced the DSG for 2020/21 on the 19th December 2019.

The 2020/21 position for Gloucestershire is:

This represents an increase in the total DSG of £27.6m (6.1%) from the current 
2019/20 DSG.

2.3 Schools Block and Delegated Schools Formula

The increase in the schools block can be broken down further as follows:

The net increase in pupil numbers is 630 (Primary 124 less; Secondary 754 more)

After taking into account the previously agreed growth fund of £1.5m, the funds 
remaining in the schools block settlement are enough to allow each formula factor 
rate and the minimum funding levels to be implemented 100% at the NFF level and 
for the MFG to be set at +1.84%. 

This is in line with the factor rates that were reported at the indicative budget stage at 
the November Forum meeting, with the only change then being to use the updated 
census data numbers which produces the summary formula shown at Annex A.

This leaves a balance of £0.882m in the 2020/21 schools block and it is proposed 
that this balance is used at year end as a one off contribution towards the high needs 
deficit. 

Recommendations
1. The Forum notes the Dedicated Schools Grant settlement for 2020/21. 
2. The Forum recommend the council agree the school funding formula for 

2020/21, as set out in Annex A.
3. The Forum agrees that the balance on the schools block can be used at 

year end as a one off contribution towards the high needs deficit.

Page 14



3 Early Years 
Provisional hourly rates for two and three and four years olds were published on the 
31 October 2019 with an 8 pence increase on both rates. It was reported at the 
November Forum that these provisional rates would provide additional funding of 
£0.605 million based on current numbers. These provisional rates have now been 
confirmed in the early years block for 2020/21 along with a £15,990 increase to the 
disability access fund, giving an overall increase to the early years block of £621,160.
There will be further updates in summer 2020 and summer 2021 for the January 
pupil counts.  The early years financial position and formula is set out in a separate 
paper. 

4 Central School Services Block (CSSB)
The CSSB includes funding for on-going responsibilities of Local Authorities for the 
statutory duties that they hold for both maintained schools and academies. It includes 
funding for Admissions, School Forum coordination, copyright licences and centrally 
retained duties. The allocation is based on a formula using pupil numbers (90%), free 
school meals (Ever 6, 10%) with an area cost adjustment applied. The indicative rate 
per pupil for 2020/21 is £31.94 and there has been an increase of £20,123 related to 
the net increase in pupil numbers. 

These funds cover the following costs:-

Central School Services Block £M
Copyright licences 0.493
Schools Forum 0.127
Admissions Coordination 0.750
Centrally Retained Duties 1.209
TOTAL 2.579

The cost of copyright licences reflects the 2020/21 charge, there is no change to 
Schools Forum and Admissions and the balance is adjusted against centrally 
retained duties. 

Recommendation 4 
Forum agrees the allocation of the central school’s services block as set out 
above.

5. High Needs

The High Needs Block has been allocated an additional £6.534m, bringing the total 
funding for 2020/21 to £66.429m.  Details of the 2019/20 High Needs forecast and 
the draft budget for 2020/21 are contained within the High Needs report.

Page 15



Annex A

Schools and academies budget allocations before de-delegation % of
Units Rate Primary Secondary Total delegated

Pupil led Factors: £ £ £ £ budget
Basic Entitlement Primary (Age Weighted Pupil Unit) 47,535 £2,874.97 136,660,287 136,660,287 36.5%
Basic Entitlement KS3 (Age Weighted Pupil Unit) 20,711 £4,043.27 83,740,232 83,740,232 22.4%
Basic Entitlement KS4 (Age Weighted Pupil Unit) 12,668 £4,589.69 58,142,176 58,142,176 15.5%
Total AWPU (October 2019 pupils) 80,914 136,660,287 141,882,408 278,542,695 74.4%
Deprivation Primary (FSM ever 6) 8,722 £563.52 4,915,126
Deprivation Secondary (FSM ever 6) 6,097 £820.13 5,000,350
Deprivation Primary (FSM) 6,192 £452.83 2,803,825
Deprivation Secondary (FSM) 3,660 £452.83 1,657,360
IDACI F Primary 4,169 £211.32 881,042
IDACI F Secondary 2,618 £301.89 790,203
IDACI E Primary 3,744 £251.57 941,860
IDACI E Secondary 2,333 £407.55 950,787
IDACI D Primary 1,893 £377.36 714,239
IDACI D Secondary 1,022 £538.37 550,200
IDACI C Primary 1,869 £407.55 761,764
IDACI C Secondary 1,108 £583.65 646,678
IDACI B Primary 2,291 £437.74 1,002,960
IDACI B Secondary 1,303 £628.93 819,279
IDACI A Primary 316 £603.77 190,493
IDACI A Secondary 197 £845.28 166,596
Prior Attainment (Y1-6 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile) 15,540 £1,071.70 16,654,253
Prior Attainment (Y7 - Y11 LPA) 6,459 £1,620.13 10,464,236
English as Additional Language (3 year EAL) 2,398 £538.37 1,291,092
English as Additional Language (3 year EAL) 342 £1,449.06 494,865
Mobility Primary 417 £880.50 366,847
Mobility Secondary 30 £1,257.86 37,384
Total Pupil Led delegations 167,183,788 163,460,344 330,644,132 88.3%

School Leds Factors: £ £ £ £
Lump Sum 246 £115,120 28,319,416 8.8%
Lump Sum 40 £115,120 4,604,783 0.0%
Sparsity 30 £26,164 606,792 0.2%
Sparsity 4 £68,025 178,793 0.0%
Total Other Formula factors 28,926,207 4,783,576 33,709,783 9.0%

Premises: £ £ £
Split Sites 3 schools @ £45,507.81 + £60.70 / pupil 162,685 162,685 0.0%

Rates 2,491,868 1,184,895 3,676,763 1.0%

Exceptional Premises Factor - Rents Based on 20/21 estimates 136,783 0 136,783 0.0%
Total Premises 2,791,336 1,184,895 3,976,231 1.1%

Total budget allocations before MFG, minimum pupil funding uplift and de-delegation 198,901,332 169,428,815 368,330,147 98.4%

Currently based on 20/21 estimates + 
19/20 adjustments

1,785,957 0.5%

404,231 0.1%

32,924,199

785,584

1,822,239 0.5%

357,088 0.1%

27,118,489 7.2%

1,892,647 0.5%

1,264,439 0.3%

1,408,442 0.4%

1,671,245 0.4%

9,915,476 2.6%

4,461,184 1.2%

P
age 16



Minimum Per Pupil Funding Uplift £ £ £
Additional funding due to minimum per pupil funding (primary pupils) 31 £3,750 1,456,103 1,456,103 0.4%
Additional funding due to minimum per pupil funding (Secondary schools with KS3 & KS4 pupils) 17 £5,000 3,894,202 3,894,202 1.0%
Additional funding due to minimum per pupil funding (Secondary schools with KS4 pupils only) 0 £5,300 0 0 0.0%
Total Minimum Pupil Funding Uplft 1,456,103 3,894,202 5,350,305 1.4%

Minimum Funding Guarantee £ £ £
MFG protections 1.84% 574,562 76,592 651,154 0.2%
Total Minimum Funding Guarantee 574,562 76,592 651,154 0.2%

Total budget allocations after MFG, Minimum Per Pupil Funding Uplift but before De-delegations 200,931,996 173,399,609 374,331,605 100.0%

Proposed de-delegation for maintained schools only (takes into account anticipated conversions by 6/1/20)

Maintained Rate Primary Secondary Total
Pupils £ £ £ £

Targeted Intervention & Support Primary 35,659 £9.27 330,559
Targeted Intervention & Support Secondary 4,051 £0.00 0
Union Facilities Primary 35,659 £3.05 108,760 108,760 0.0%
October Pupil Increases (above threshold) 35,659 £8.32 296,683 296,683 0.1%
Education Functions Primary (statutory duties previously covered by ESG general duties) 35,659 £5.00 178,295 178,295 0.0%
Education Functions Secondary (statutory duties previously covered by ESG general duties) 4,051 £5.00 20,255 20,255 0.0%
Total de-delegation funds available to maintained schools 39,710 914,297 20,255 934,552 0.2%

0
Total budget allocations after MFG, Minimum Per Pupil Funding Uplift and De-delegations 200,017,700 173,379,354 373,397,054 99.8%

330,559 0.1%

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4

SCHOOLS FORUM – JANUARY 2020

EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES

In January 2018 the reshape of GCC education services resulted in the creation of the Children with 
Additional Needs Service to provide a focus on supporting schools to meet the needs of all of their children 
and assisting them with individual cases which necessitate a multi-agency response. In addition to advice, 
guidance and training for school staff and Governors, since that time, the service has directed supported 
schools in:

 finding alternatives to permanent exclusion for over 100 children;

 co-ordinating a multi-agency response to wider school challenges through its Team Around the 
School – improving attendance, fixed term and permanent exclusions and pupil progress in those 
schools;

 providing dedicated support to schools in meeting the needs of unaccompanied asylum seeking 
children (on individual cases and wider school challenges) reducing their time out of education 
from a maximum of 7 months to 3 weeks and increasing their success rate of integration and 
participation within school; 

 overseeing 885 part-time timetable provision to assist schools in ensuring their systems and 
decisions will stand up to Ofsted scrutiny;

 liaising with other agencies on schools behalf where there are wider child or family issues to ensure 
a joined up approach and that schools are kept informed of a child’s circumstances – especially in 
relation to police operation activity;

 liaising with children who are home educated or have previously been excluded and their new 
school to facilitate successful transition in over 200 cases

 increasing overall attendance of children to 95.7% and reducing persistent absence to 9.6% through 
increased family support and legal action where this is not effective

Feedback from schools and families has been positive about the work of this service (especially Education 
Inclusion) and we are seeing greater collaboration between schools and other partners to best meet the 
needs of children. 

Unfortunately, due to the increase in vulnerable children and families in the county, GCC education support 
services are finding themselves unable to maintain appropriate levels of service to schools, and to their 
children. Support services have undergone a number of efficiency savings but this has not been able to 
remedy the resource required in two particular areas where GCC teams are providing a greater service to 
schools than is legislatively required. 

Schools Forum is therefore asked to consider the preferred course of action in the support provided for 
both attendance and safeguarding through the MASH. 

Page 19



Page 2 of 4

1. Attendance

Whilst GCC has a statutory responsibility to take legal action against parents who do not send their children 
to school, this responsibility does not extend to the issuing of penalty notices (unless legal action is taken in 
regard to non-payment). As individual schools are responsible for setting their own attendance policies and 
ensuring children attend school this duty sits with them. However to ease the administrative burden on 
schools this service was retained by GCC when the funding for education services (including education 
welfare) was delegated to schools in 2011. 

Since that time we have seen an increase in the number of attendance cases; significantly so in recent 
years. In the 2018/19 academic year, 85 schools asked GCC to issue 1,851 penalty notices for non-
attendance. This was a 2.5x increase from the previous academic year. 

2017/18 2018/19
Number Requests to issue received 713 1,851
Total Number Penalty Notices issued 575 1,632
Of which…                                Holidays 561 1,612

Lateness 9 8
Truancy 4 0

After Pre-court 1 12

A quarter (57) of primary schools requested the issue of penalty notices during 2018/19; with an average of 
16 issued per school. 36 of these primary schools had not requested the issue of penalty notices previously. 
70% of secondary schools (28 schools) had penalty notices issued which was 7 more schools than in 
2017/18. The average number issued per secondary school was 25 and ranged from 1 to 79. 

In the same time period, the number of requests for legal interventions received and legal interventions 
that have taken place have more than doubled. 

2017/18 2018/19
Requests to initiate legal proceedings received 83 176
Interviews Under Caution taken place 80 133
School Attendance Orders Issued 4 0
Prosecutions taken place 24 110
Simple Cautions delivered 18 14

The number of prosecutions have mainly increased due to a larger number of unpaid Penalty Notices that 
have been taken forward for prosecution (93 of the prosecutions were for the original offence of non-
school attendance following an unpaid penalty notice). 

Whilst the income generated by penalty notices has previously been almost sufficient to cover the staffing 
resource required for attendance work, the increase in this area means that this is no longer the case. As 
such, it has been identified that GCC would require a further full-time position to continue to offer the 
same level of attendance service for schools (to include non statutory work such as penalty notices, 
providing advice and guidance to schools and hosting attendance networks). 

The costs associated to such a post would equate to £43,00 per year. 

Page 20



Page 3 of 4

Due to the current demands upon the High Needs Budget there is insufficient funding available to GCC to 
meet such a cost. As such Schools Forum is asked to consider two options: 

a) To reduce the attendance support provided by GCC. 

This would result in individual schools taking responsibility for issuing their own penalty notices and 
taking steps to ensure prompt payment. It would also limit school information, advice and guidance 
on attendance issues to a web resource on schoolsnet. In addition, it would also see the demise of 
the Attendance Networks unless schools were willing to increase their funding level to participate 
in this forum to cover the true cost. 

b) For schools to provide additional funding so GCC can continue to provide the same level of 
attendance support. 

This would sustain the current level of support but improve responsiveness and timeliness of 
support which has become an issue recently due to the lack of staff capacity. However, this would 
require agreement from all schools to cover the additional resource cost of £43,000 per year.

2. Safeguarding (MASH)

As schools are an essential partner in identifying and responding to safeguarding concerns GCC currently 
employ 2 education researchers dedicated to the MASH. This resource (funded through the High Needs 
Budget) has slowly increased over time as the MASH has become more established but we have not been 
able to match the increasing levels of investment from our partners.   

Current establishment of the MASH is: 

Posts
Police 37
Social Care 34
Family Information Service 3
Health* 3
GDAS* 2
Education 2

* There are plans to increase the health compliment and to consider expanding the GDAS element due to 
the volume of MASH workload. 

For safeguarding reasons, the level of personal scrutiny required for staff working within the MASH 
prevents us from being able to appoint any additional temporary staff in a timely way when workloads 
peak and therefore dedicated resource is required to manage school support within the MASH.  

The volume of cases dealt with within the MASH has continued to increase since its inception and 
deliberate steps have been taken to filter all safeguarding concerns through the team to ensure a 
consistent, informed, multi-agency and timely response which protects children and their families. 
However, as a result of this the monthly volume of work for the education researchers has increased by 
eight-fold between 2018 to 2019 (i.e. from 31 in September 2018 to 248 in September 2019 alone).

And whilst Operation Encompass has received positive support from schools and others involved, its 
introduction has resulted in an average of 173 additional cases requiring school contact and support per 
month, placing additional burden on the staff. 

Page 21



Page 4 of 4

The work of the MASH education researchers has been reviewed and non-essential tasks have been able to 
be covered by the wider education support service where necessary and appropriate (based upon 
safeguarding thresholds). However, despite this, the volume of workload within the MASH means that 
there are an increasing number of cases where education research is not being delivered to the required 
timescales to inform appropriate safeguarding action (i.e. in July 2019 education research was provided in 
the required 24 hours in 174 cases and this had fallen to 32 by November 2019). 

This meant that in November there were 156 cases closed (28% of all cases) without education research 
having been conducted. Whilst education research may not always be vital to inform every case, it is 
essential that education information is shared with other partners to assist with making the appropriate 
safeguarding responses; and more importantly that schools are able to make informed decisions based 
upon wider agency planning when responding to children and their families on a daily basis. As such, it has 
been identified that an additional education research post is required within the MASH, but suggested that 
this is limited to term time only working to reflect the nature of schools work – a financial commitment of 
£16,000 per year. 

Due to the current demands upon the High Needs Budget there is insufficient funding available to GCC to 
meet such a cost. As such Schools Forum is asked to consider two options: 

a) To accept the reduced level of education input into the MASH. 

As the volume of cases being referred through the MASH continues to increase this would result in 
education being involved in many less cases; with schools not being alerted to a number of cases 
(safeguarding threshold dependent) or invited to participate in strategy meetings in a timely way, 
and schools not being asked to share their information about a child or family to inform the 
appropriate response. We know of a number of cases where it has been the education information 
which has resulted in the right course of action being taken for a child.  To allow education 
researchers to meet the casework requirements of the MASH, they would become unavailable for 
DSLs to contact informally for support, advice or guidance on current cases; or where they have 
lower level concerns they wish to seek advice on for a quick response outside of the formal 
safeguarding processes. 

b) For schools to provide additional funding so GCC can increase education presence in the MASH. 

This would sustain the current level of activity but significantly improve responsiveness and 
timeliness of information sharing and gathering with, and from, schools – providing a greater multi-
agency approach to safeguarding and assisting schools in meeting their safeguarding duties. 
However, this would require agreement from all schools to cover the additional resource cost of 
£16,000 per year. 

Page 22



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Early Years Report 
 

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

9th January 2020 

Type of Decision For decision 

Background 
Documents 

 

Authors Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development 

Sarah Hylton, Early Years Service Manager 

Purpose of Report Forum members are asked to consider and feedback on 

recommendations in relation to: 

 Use of the carried forward Early Years underspend 

 Options for the use of additional Early Years funding for 

2020/21. 

Key 
Recommendations 

 

Forum members are asked to approve the recommendation that 

1. The Early Years carry forward balance  of £1.47 million is 

used as follows: 

 Retain £0.22 million (15%) of the underspend to provide 
contingency should any unforeseen costs arise. 

 Allocate £1 million to providers based on the full 
academic year hours (option 1) and adjust for deprivation 
factors (option 3).  

 Retain £0.25m to support early year improvement 
projects to improve the GLD.  
 

2. That the additional allocated 8p per hour be added to the 
hourly rate passed to Early Years providers for both 2 year 
olds and 3 and 4 year olds. And that there is a consultation 
with Early Years providers on a number of options in respect 
of the early years formula including the deprivation and 
quality supplement payments for 3 and 4 year olds. 

 

Resource 
Implications 

It was agreed at the 20 June 2019 School Forum that the early 
years balances from 2018/19 would be earmarked for early years. 

In October 2019 the DFE announced an increase of 8p per hour for 
both the two year old and three and four year olds rate for 2020/21. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



1. Introduction 

 

1.1. The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Early Years block funding is calculated using 

the numbers from the claims submitted in the January census multiplied by a 

nationally set rate hourly rate which currently for 2019/20 in Gloucestershire is 

£4.30 for three and four year olds and £5.28 for two year olds.  The January 

census 2019 is used to fund the Autumn 2018 and the spring and summer term 

2019, this creates a lagged funding effect for the Autumn and Spring terms. 

 

1.2. Funding is also not utilised equally across the academic year.  The number of 

hours for three and four year olds are lower in the Autumn term and increase to be 

at their highest in the summer term. With the Autumn term also being 14 weeks 

rather than 12 for the other two terms, this can lead to surplus funding being 

available when the lagged effect is adjusted for in the June/July of the following 

year. 

 

1.3. This paper sets out the Early Years context in Gloucestershire and provides 

options for how best to use the surplus generated by the funding conditions 

detailed above.  

 

2. Current position and challenges of Early Years provision in Gloucestershire 

 

2.1. It is difficult to overstate the importance to children of having the best possible 

start in life.  Getting off to a good start is hugely important to their subsequent 

outcomes as they progress through childhood to adolescence and adulthood.  

Being able to access good quality, local early years provision is critical, particularly 

for those children from disadvantaged backgrounds.  It reduces the gap in 

development for children and ensure all children start school reaching a good level 

of development as they enter year one. 

 

2.2. Good progress has been made by the Early Years Service over recent years to 

ensure provision is both accessible and of high quality. However, more work is 

needed to improve outcomes for children, particularly in achieving a good level of 

development or ‘school readiness’ as a vital baseline measure to understand 

progress as they go through school.   

 

2.3. The fragility of the Early Years infrastructure presents a challenge to the 

sufficiency and quality of early education and childcare both locally and nationally.  

 

2.4. Rising costs and the low hourly childcare rate have led to nurseries struggling to 

recruit and retain qualified staff, and to ensure long term sustainability.  As a result 

of this, and general financial challenges for small child care businesses, we have 

started to see an increase in the number of settings closing or reporting that they 

are at risk of closure.  We are currently conducting a risk analysis of charity run 

settings in the county and early indications are that many will need significant 

support to remain sustainable. 

 

Page 24



2.5. Whilst the hourly rate is set by Government, local providers do challenge the LA in 

respect of the low funding levels they receive and the impact that this has on both 

quality and sustainability of provision. 

 

2.6. Sheffield City Council were recently challenged by its local EY providers when 

they identified that the Council had an underspend of approximately £800,000 for 

2018/19 within the early years DSG budget.  As a result of the challenge Sheffield 

City Council agreed to increase providers’ base funding rate by 4p from £4.10 to 

£4.14 and boost the deprivation supplement by 10p to 40p per child. This will be 

backdated for all early years providers to April 2019 

 

3. Current Financial Position 

 

3.1. At the end of 2018/19 the carry forward of Early Years DSG in Gloucestershire 

was £1.505 million caused by a significant increase in the January census 

numbers which were adjusted for in the year end accounts. Further adjustments 

relating to 2018/19 and the finalised DFE allocations received in July 19, including 

the lagged effect, have resulted in early years balances of £1.47 million. 

Discussions have been taking place since this date to decide on the best 

approach to take to distribute the balances. 

 

3.2. Current estimates of hours and costs for 2019/20 based on the summer and 

autumn terms are forecast to be between £0.42 million and £0.62 million 

underspent for three and four year olds.  Two year old payments are close to 

budget based on the latest estimates. 

 

4. Funding Options In-Year 

 

4.1. Gloucestershire currently has early years DSG carry forward balances available of 

£1.47 million.  There are a number of options set out below which could be 

applied.    

 

1. Allocate funding to providers based on academic year hours – Autumn 18 to 
Summer 19, OR 

2. Allocate funding to providers based on just the summer term hours  – Summer 
19, OR 

3. Using either of the above options but adjusting for deprivation. 
4. Allocate funding towards early years projects to improve standards and support 

early intervention. 
5. Retain the underspend to off-set overspend on Dedicated Schools Grant 

 

4.2. After consideration of the options available, it is recommended that we: 

 

 retain £0.22 million (15%) of the underspend to provide contingency should any 
unforeseen costs arise. 

 allocate £1 million to providers based on the full academic year hours (option 1) 
and adjust for deprivation factors (option 3).  

 Retain £0.25m to support early year improvement projects to improve the GLD.  
 

Page 25



5. Rationale 

 

5.1. It provides a positive injection of funding (£1m) based on providers last years 

claims, which will be well received and have a significant impact on the challenges 

that providers face to deliver a quality provision for children in the county.  

 

5.2. The adjustment for deprivation will ensure an enhancement for providers 

supporting the most deprived communities.  

 

5.3. Continued investment in Early Years improvement projects will support early 

identification and intervention, which in turn will have an impact on school 

readiness and overall achievement of outcomes for young children and their 

families. This aligns with the objectives outlined in both the High Needs and Joint 

Additional Needs Strategies. 

 

5.4. The possibility of transferring the underspend from the Early Years block to offset 

overspends in other parts of the dedicated schools grant was considered.  

However, given that the new funding announcement provided additional funding 

for both schools and high needs, it was felt that utilising Early Years funding to 

support overspends would be both reputationally and  politically damaging.  It 

would also significantly damage our relationship with Early Years providers in the 

county. 

 

6. Early Years Formula Options 

6.1. The Department of Education provides local authorities with five relevant funding 

streams which together form the Early Years block of the Dedicated Schools Grant 

(DSG). They are:  

 

 the early years entitlement for disadvantaged two year olds  

 the early years universal entitlement for three and four year olds  

 the early years additional entitlement for three and four year old children of 
eligible working parents  

 the Early Years Pupil Premium (EYPP)  

 the Disability Access Fund (DAF)  
 
6.2. Since its introduction in April 2017, the Early Years National Funding Formula 

(EYNFF) has set the hourly funding rates that each local authority (LA) is paid to 

deliver the universal and additional entitlements for three and four year olds.  

 
 
 
 

Page 26



6.3. The LA has the following duties in respect of this funding (Nursery Funding 

Operational Guide 2019 – 2020): 

 must plan to pass on at least 95% of their three and four year old funding 
directly to providers to deliver the three and four year old entitlements 

 must now use a universal base rate for all types of provider in their local three 
and four year old formula, including for Maintained Nursery Schools 

 must use a deprivation supplement in their local three and four year old 
formula, and any other supplements used must fall within one of the allowable 
categories 

 must not channel more than 10% of their funding for three and four olds through 
funding supplements 

 must provide a Special Educational Needs Inclusion Fund (SENIF) for three 
and four year olds 

 must pass on Early Years Pupil Premium (EYPP) in full to providers for eligible 
three and four year olds 

 must pass on Disability Access Fund (DAF) funding in full to providers for 
eligible three and four year olds. 
 

6.4. For 2019/20 the provisional total Early Years DSG block allocated to 

Gloucestershire is £33.559 million and this will be updated with the revised take-

up of hours collected from the January 2020 census. 

 

6.5. Rates were set as follows: 

 2 year olds – allocated hourly rate = £5.28 

 Base rate passed to providers= £4.91  

 3 and 4 year olds – allocated hourly rate = £4.30 

 Base rate passed to providers = £3.91 per hour (after 4.88% retention) 

 Deprivation payment = £0.16 per hour  

 Quality supplement = £0.02 per hour 

 

6.6. Following the spending review announcement to increase Early Years spending 

by £66 million, the provisional new rates would provide Gloucestershire with an 

additional £0.621 million based on current numbers. The provisional early years 

block for 2020/21 was announced by the DfE in December 2019. The allocated 

hourly rate for 2020/21 has increased by 8p per hour.  It is proposed that this 8p 

per hour be added to the hourly rate passed to providers for both 2 year olds and 

3 and 4 year olds. It is also proposed that there is a consultation with Early Years 

providers on a number of options in respect of the early years formula including 

the deprivation and quality supplement payments for 3 and 4 year olds.   

 

6.7. All options assume that the quality supplement will no longer be de-delegated 

back to the Local Authority to fund Early Years Support services (approx. £135K) 

but will be included in payment made to EY providers.  GCC has identified 

alternative funding to ensure the continuation of the provision and delivery of Early 

Years services to support the development and management of the fragile EY 

provider market across the county. 

Page 27



6.8. The deprivation payment is made to settings in relation to individual children who 

live in postcode areas of high deprivation.  The total amount of deprivation 

payments made in academic year 2018/19 was £1,090,047; 593 settings in total 

across the county received a deprivation payment for at least one child. 

 

6.9. The options are set out below: 

 

2 year olds 

The base rate will increase from £4.91 to £4.99 to include the additional £0.08 

3 & 4 year olds 

The rate includes the additional £0.08 announced by the DFE in October 2019 

 Current Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 

 £ £ £ £ 

Base rate 3.91 3.99 3.99 4.01 

Deprivation 0.16 0.16 0.18 0.16 

Quality 0.02 0.02 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL 4.09 4.17 4.17 4.17 

 

Option 1 – Includes the additional £0.08 in the base rate, maintains the 

deprivation rate as 16p and leaves the quality supplement in the formula to be 

distributed to settings. The basis for distributing the quality supplement is to be 

agreed but previously this was devolved to settings that have an Ofsted rating of 

Outstanding in acknowledgement of the support that they will then subsequently 

provide to other provision in their locality.  There will be need to be consideration 

of and agreement with regard to how this is managed with potential changes in 

Ofsted rating within the year. 

Option 2 - Includes the additional £0.08 in the base rate and moves the quality 

supplement into deprivation.  This increases the deprivation payment to those 

settings who have children attending that live in areas of deprivation, in recognition 

of the potential impact of this. 

Option 3 - Includes the additional £0.08 in the base rate and moves the quality 

supplement into the base rate.  The deprivation payment remains the same for 

those settings in receipt of this but all settings receive a higher base rate. 

 

Page 28



 

High Needs Report 
 

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

9th January 2020 

Type of Decision For decision 

Background 
Documents 

High Needs Strategy 

Funding inclusion and early intervention proposal 

Working group notes 

ISOS Partnership research report 

Authors Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development 

Purpose of Report  To provide an update on the current financial forecast for the 

2019/20 High Needs Budget. 

To share and take feedback on the draft budget for 2020/21. 

To provide an update on the progress of the working group focus on 

Funding Inclusion and early intervention. 

Key 
Recommendations 

 That the High Needs budget for 2020/21 is based on a continued 

rising level of need, resulting in 355 additional funded EHCPs 

 That a formal consultation on High Needs spending is planned 

and delivered to report at the September 2020 schools forum 

meeting. 

 That we commence a pilot of the proposed approach to funding 

inclusion and early intervention. 

Resource 
Implications 

The High Needs Block has been allocated an additional £6.534 
million, bringing the total funding for 2020/21 to £66.429 million 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



1. High Needs – 2019/20 Financial Forecast 

 

1.1. The forecast for the High Needs budget is showing increased expenditure of 

£122,200 since the last Schools Forum meeting.  This will mean that the 

forecast in-year deficit will rise to £7,035,700 and the cumulative High Needs 

deficit to £9,919,300. 

 

High Needs Block Budget Actual Variance 
 

October 
Variance 

Change 
between 
months 

 
£000 £000 £000 

 
£000 £000 

Alternative provision - places & top 
ups & services 5,647.1 5,654.5 7.4 

 
99.1 -91.7 

Alternative provision - Glos Hospital 
Education 1,619.4 1,681.6 62.2 

 
19.7 42.5 

EHCP Costs - College and FE 3,961.3 4,982.2 1,020.9 
 

1,126.2 -105.3 

EHCP Costs - Early Years 166.3 191.0 24.7 
 

0.0 24.7 

EHCP Costs - Primary 6,521.7 6,983.0 461.3 
 

300.0 161.3 

EHCP Costs - Secondary 3,661.6 3,700.4 38.8 
 

41.6 -2.8 

Excluded pupils 0.0 -81.2 -81.2 
 

-81.7 0.5 

LA Services and staffing 3,375.8 3,649.3 273.5 
 

191.6 81.9 

Independent Special Schools 10,726.6 12,646.6 1,920.0 
 

1,865.8 54.2 

Restorative Practice 200.0 160.9 -39.1 
 

-27.2 -11.9 

Special Centres 487.7 492.1 4.4 
 

4.4 0.0 

Special school provision 16,601.8 18,747.0 2,145.2 
 

2,145.2 0.0 

Support Services 1,262.6 1,202.5 -60.1 
 

-28.9 -31.2 

Virtual School 610.4 610.4 0.0 
 

0.0 0.0 

High Needs Unallocated -1,257.7 0.0 1,257.7 
 

1,257.7 0.0 

Rounding 
  

0.0 
  

0.0 

 
53,584.6 60,620.3 7,035.7 

 
6,913.5 122.2 

 

 
1.2. The main movements this reporting period are: 

 A reduction in planned spending of £91,000 on alternative provision.  The 

forecast spending has been reduced due to the lower levels of permanent 

exclusion seen so far this year. 

 A reduction in planned spending on EHCP costs for Colleges and FE of 

£105,000, due to 5 planned places not being taken up.  

 EHCP top-up costs have been reforecast to include £161,300 additional 

expenditure due to a higher than expected level of demand. 

 Independent special schools costs have increased by £54,200 due to an 

additional high cost placement.  

 LA services and staffing costs are higher than expected with an increased 

spending of £81,900. This is caused by an increase in staffing costs in the 

EHCP team to support and manage the rising numbers of plans. 

 

Page 30



2. High Needs Draft Budget – 2020/21 

 

2.1. The 2019/20 budget was prepared on assumptions that the rising level of need 

and the increasing number of Education Health Care Plans (EHCPs) would 

abate. This has not materialised and the planned deficit of £1,257,700 is now 

just over £7m. In section 3 of this report we have provided more details of the 

national picture for high needs and comparison data for other local authorities. 

This shows that we still compare favourably against the national picture and 

comparator authorities.   

 

2.2. Whilst it is difficult to precisely forecast the 2020/21 budget, due to the demand 

led nature of the expenditure, it is important that the budget provides a much 

more accurate forecast than in 2019/20.  This will provide a more stable basis 

from which we are able to deliver and make longer term plans for recovery.  

Importantly it will also enable us to present a more accurate picture of the 

funding pressures to the Department for Education (DfE) and the Education 

Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). At the current level of overspend we will be 

asked by the DfE and ESFA to submit a recovery plan. 

 

2.3. Therefore, in creating the draft budget for 2020/21 we have assumed that 

trends we have seen in 19/20 will continue.  The key assumption in setting the 

2020/21 budget is the predicted rise in the number of Education Health Care 

Plans and where the children and young people will be educated (mainstream 

or specialist provision).   

 

2.4. Whilst we still expect the rise in the number of EHCPs to reduce over time, this 

last year has proved that we should be cautious in assuming that the trend will 

change in the short-term. 

 

2.5. The 2020/21 draft budget has therefore been prepared on the assumption that 

the net increase in EHCPs will be 355, which is in line with the rise seen 

2019/20 and continues to reflect national trends. It also assumes that the 

proportion of children and young people educated in the mainstream and 

specialist provision will remain in line with the 2019/20 trend (as below). 

 

 Mainstream Maintained 

Special 

Schools 

Independent 

non-maintained 

Special 

Schools 

FE/P16 Other 

(AP, 

GHES 

etc.) 

% of total no. of 

CYP with 

EHCPS 

45% 35% 6% 10% 4% 

 

2.6. The draft budget also assumes the full-year costs for special and independent 

special school places. However we would expect a number of placements to 

start later in the year and attract less cost.  As such and based on the current 

Page 31



trends and available information, we believe this draft budget represents a 

worst-case scenario for 2020/21.  

 

High Needs Block Forecast year end

Estimated 

Budget

Variance 

19/20 - 20/21

£000 £000 £000

Alternative provision - places & top ups & services 5,683£                             5,684£               1£                    

Alternative provision - Glos Hospital Education 1,651£                             1,685£               34£                  

EHCP Costs - College and FE 6,892£                             7,222£               330£                

EHCP Costs - Early Years 181£                                186£                  5£                    

EHCP Costs - Primary 6,983£                             7,977£               994£                

EHCP Costs - Secondary 3,703£                             4,111£               407£                

Excluded pupils 81-£                                   100-£                  19-£                  

LA Services and staffing 3,638£                             3,443£               194-£                

Independent Special Schools 12,595£                          13,599£            1,005£            

Restorative Practice 161£                                200£                  39£                  

Special Centres 700£                                696£                  4-£                    

Special school provision 22,910£                          25,177£            2,266£            

Support Services 1,214£                             1,270£               56£                  

Virtual School 610£                                620£                  10£                  

66,840£                          71,770£            4,929£            

66,429£          

5,341£            

2019/20 2020/21

Funding Allocation

Predicted overspend  
 

2.7. As shown above the predicted overspend is currently forecast at £5,341,000. 

This is after the cash injection of £6.534 million additional funding from DfE, 

which has not fully covered the rise in spend in 19/20.  

 

2.8. Refinements will continue to be made to the forecasting model.  In particular 

feedback from Gloucestershire Special School Heads on additional capacity for 

places will need to be factored into the model, as it currently assumes that we 

will be able to meet the rising level of need for special school places in the 

maintained sector.     

 

2.9. Following the last Schools Forum meeting, Senior Officers met with the 

Gloucestershire Association of Special Schools Heads to explore opportunities 

to increase commissioned place numbers and meet some of the more complex 

needs that are currently served by independent provision.   

 

2.10. The response has been positive and is currently being reviewed by the 

specialist commissioning team, so that formal decisions about commissioned 

places to meet demand can be agreed early in the New Year. 

 

 

 

Page 32



 

 

Forum members are asked to consider and comment on the key assumptions 

that underpin the draft budget:  

 That we assume a continued net increase of circa 355 EHCPs next year.   

 That the proportions of children and young people with EHCPs educated in 

the mainstream and specialist provision will be in line with 2019/20. 

 

3. The National and Local Context for High Needs Funding 

 

3.1. To date Gloucestershire is in a minority of authorities which haven’t subsidised 

High Needs funding through a transfer of money from the schools block.  

 

3.2. Despite this our financial position in comparison to other local authorities is 

favourable. Reviewing Schools Forum and Cabinet reports we have compiled a 

short list of local comparators. 

 

 

In year 
Forecas

t 
2019/20 

Forecas
t 

Balance 
2019/20 

High 
Needs 
Budget 
2019/20 

% 
varianc

e 
against 

high 
needs 
budget 

Provisional 
funding 
2020/21 

Additional 
funding 
2020/21 

 
£000 £000 £000 % £000 £000 

Bristol 1,754 3,716 53,931 6.89 60,531 6,600 

Cambridge -8,829 -16,000 68,843 -23.24 74,594 5,751 

Devon -18,700 -18,359 69,062 -26.58 75,015 5,953 

Gloucestershire -6,669 -7,486 59,895 -12.50 66,026 6,131 

Hampshire -14,000 -27,747 115,630 -24.00 133,721 18,091 

Oxfordshire -14,000 -11,626 64,263 -18.09 72,638 8,375 
S. 
Gloucestershire -4,752 -16,398 32,291 -50.78 35,076 2,785 

Wiltshire -3,000 -5,073 46,867 -10.82 51,307 4,440 

Worcestershire -9,000 -9,600 51,629 -18.59 59,692 8,063 

(-) denotes deficit 
      NB: The forecast figures for 2019/20 are taken from Cabinet reports which are not 

consistent or clear as to whether it is an in-year forecast or one including balances. 
Balances could include Early Years and Central Block funding as well 

NB: Bristol reported an LA contribution of £4.1m to support High Needs 
 

3.3. Forum members are also asked to consider our local context against the 

national research undertaken by the ISOS partnership on behalf of the Local 

Government Association.  The research report has been shared at previous 

Forum meetings, but is included again for context.   

 

3.4. The research clearly shows a predicted gap in funding by 2021 of £1.6B.  The 

allocation of £700m in the most recent funding announcements is 900m short of 

Page 33



the predicted shortfall.  The gap in this funding accurately reflects the shortfall 

that we are predicting for 2020/21. 

 

3.5. It is clear that the government are aware of the funding crisis that is facing High 

Needs and the impact that the changes to the code of practice in 2014 have 

had.  We are therefore expecting a review of the SEND Code of Practice which 

would lead to the implementation a revised Code of Practice in January 2021. 

 

3.6. Forum members will recall that during the summer The Department for 

Education launched a consultation on how to improve funding arrangements for 

learners with high needs, from which we await a response.  

The department is seeking views on what “may be adversely influencing local 

authorities, mainstream schools, colleges and other education providers” in 

their support for young people with special education needs and disabilities 

(SEND). 

 

3.7. It is clear that level of funding that has been provided by the Department for 

Education nationally does not sufficiently address the pressures that Local 

Authority High Needs budgets are under.  This is clearly shown above. 

 

3.8. The High Needs strategy and the focus on earlier intervention and support will 

go some way to addressing the rising level of need in the long-term, but will not 

have a transformational impact in the short term. 

 

4. Next steps 

 

4.1. Over the coming months we will continue to refine the draft budget for 2020/21 

ensuring that it is as an accurate forecast for the year and that we do not see 

the significant variations that we have seen this year.   

 

4.2. This will provide a true picture of the costs of High Needs that we are able to 

share with the DfE and ESFA as part of their policy and funding reviews. 

 

4.3. However, we will also need to consider and prepare options should policy and 

funding for High Needs not changes.  This could include the transfer of funds 

from the schools block, changes to discretionary payments (e.g. 1 in 40, 

diseconomies of scale funding), a review of SEND banding/funding and Local 

Authority service delivery. 

 

4.4. These options will be considered as part of a full public consultation which 

would report to the schools forum in September 2020; with a view to 

implementation in 2021/22 (should central policy and funding positions not 

change during the year). 

 

Forum members are asked to consider and feedback on the current financial 

position, the national and local picture and the proposed next steps. 

 

Page 34



5. Funding Inclusion and Early Intervention - The School Forum Working 

Group 

 

5.1. In the first working group in October, there was agreement with the underlying 

principles and objectives in the proposal.  Notes from the working group in 

October and the proposal can be found in last School Forum agenda pack.  

 

5.2. At the working group meeting in November we discussed and approved a 

model (Appendix A) that will apportion funding between primary and secondary 

schools, based upon two key factors: 

 The first was the additional needs factors in the National Funding Formula 
(NFF) (Low Prior Attainment, Deprivation and English as an Additional 
Language).  This identifies the incidence of where the pupils are and takes 
into account the NFF value weightings applied to each of the additional 
needs elements. 

 The second is the average number of permanent exclusions over the last 5 

years. This had then been used to obtain a weighting between the sectors 

that had been applied to uplift the secondary additional needs budgets. 

 

5.3. The meeting also brought forward a range of operational and logistical 

concerns about the proposal.  Notes from the meeting can be found in the 

agenda pack. 

 

5.4. To move the project forward and to address the logistical and operational 

concerns we are proposing to test the new model through a pilot.  Following 

discussions with and agreement from the Cheltenham Association of 

Secondary Headteachers we are proposing to run the pilot in the Cheltenham 

area. The basis of the pilot is outlined below: 

 

Objectives 

The objective of the pilot will be to test and refine a number of the key elements of the 

proposed model.  This would include: 

 Collaboration: Test how effectively schools are able to implement a positive and 
open culture of collaboration within the cluster, to support and challenge at both 
Baseline and Tier 1 provision. 

 Strategic oversight: Ensure that the Cluster Strategic Panel operates effectively 
to ensure oversight and strategic direction. 

 Baseline and Tier 1 support: Test the quality and level of support provided at 
baseline and tier 1 by Gloucestershire County Council Services, alternative 
provision schools and wider network of alternative providers in Gloucestershire. 

 Key Stage 3: Test whether the support provided at Baseline and Tier 1 is effective 
and sufficient to ensure that we are able to meet the objective of not permanently 
excluding at KS3. 

 High Tier Alternative Provision: Test how effectively the Higher Tier Alternative 
Provision Panel will function and the support and development required for 
alternative provision schools to adapt and deliver a broader vocational and 

Page 35



academic Key Stage 4 offer.  

 Funding: Test that the funding model operates effectively and that funding is 
targeted and used effectively to support the children most at risk of permanent 
exclusion. 

Funding 

To ensure stability during the pilot programme alternative provision will continue to be 

commissioned countywide at current levels.  Funding to do this has been top-sliced from 

the total available funding (£5.7m spend on alternative provision). After this top-slice, 

funding for the 6 schools in the Cheltenham cluster will be £456,038 for the financial year.  

How funding is distributed between schools and the cluster will need to be agreed as part 

of the pilot and should focus on ensuring it’s available to schools and children that are in 

most need of support. 

Timeline and evaluation 

To thoroughly test the model, we will need to pilot over a minimum of 5 terms, with the 

flexibility to extend as required. Implementation will commence in term 4 2019/20, with a 

view to start operating in term 5. If progress is successful and agreement can be reached 

we would like to extend the pilot later in the year to include another cluster.  

A formal evaluation framework with success criteria will be developed and agreed during 

the first phase of the pilot. 

 

Forum members are asked to review and provide feedback on the notes of the 

working group meeting, the funding model and the outline of the pilot 

programme.  

Forum members are asked to agree to proceed with a pilot programme as 

outlined above. 

 

Page 36



Appendix A: LINCS Devolved Funding Formula
To see different results amend the yellow cells showing: Total amount to devolve: £3,520,000

Total amount to devolve; Cluster% allocation Primary 30% £1,045,203

 and AP commissioned places per cluster Secondary 70% £2,474,797

Primary

Sector split 100.0% Further Clusters Split

Total taking into Total allocation 0.0% Total Commissioned Clusters

LINCs LINC Additional PEX average account PEX by weighted Schools Clusters AP Places Element

Schools NOR needs Budget  Weighting weighting Needs Budgets Element Element Places Amount Remaining

Cheltenham Learning Partnership 27 8,054 £5,030,692 1.00 £174,737 £0 £174,737 0 £0 £174,737

Gloucester Schools Partnership 36 12,015 £8,871,877 1.00 £308,158 £0 £308,158 0 £0 £308,158

North Cotswold Primary Schools Partnership 19 2,255 £1,086,693 1.00 £37,745 £0 £37,745 0 £0 £37,745

Schools not in Partnership 18 4,763 £4,061,203 1.00 £141,063 £0 £141,063 0 £0 £141,063

South Cotswold Schools Partnership 21 3,305 £1,602,589 1.00 £55,665 £0 £55,665 0 £0 £55,665

Stroud association of schools 59 8,131 £3,986,246 1.00 £138,459 £0 £138,459 0 £0 £138,459 Primary devolved amount Further Clusters split:

Tewkesbury District Partnership 28 4,257 £2,206,203 1.00 £76,631 £0 £76,631 0 £0 £76,631 AP Places Remaining

West Gloucestershire Schools Partnership 38 4,882 £3,245,944 1.00 £112,745 £0 £112,745 0 £0 £112,745 Individual Schools % 0.0% £0

Primary Total 246 47,662 £30,091,448 1.00 30% £1,045,203 £0 £1,045,203 0 £0 £1,045,203 100.0% £1,045,203

246 61% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%

Secondary Sector split 100.0% Further Clusters Split

Total taking into Total allocation 0.0% Total Commissioned Clusters

LINCs LINC Additional PEX average account PEX by weighted Schools Clusters AP Places Element

Schools NOR needs Budget  Weighting weighting Needs Budgets Element Element Places Amount Remaining

Chipping Camden & Tewkesbury 3 3,395 £1,907,355 3.78 £250,280 £0 £250,280 0 £0 £250,280

CASH 6 5,408 £3,557,836 3.78 £466,853 £0 £466,853 0 £0 £466,853

Forest 6 3,914 £2,856,262 3.78 £374,793 £0 £374,793 0 £0 £374,793

South Cotswold 3 2,588 £1,173,082 3.78 £153,930 £0 £153,930 0 £0 £153,930

Stroud 7 4,979 £2,677,979 3.78 £351,399 £0 £351,399 0 £0 £351,399 Secondary devolved amount Further Clusters split:

G15 8 7,510 £6,687,660 3.78 £877,542 £0 £877,542 0 £0 £877,542 AP Places Remaining

Secondary Total 33 27,794 £18,860,175 3.78 70% £2,474,797 £0 £2,474,797 0 £0 £2,474,797 100.0% £2,474,797

39% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%

Overall Total 279 75,456 £48,951,623 100% £3,520,000 £0 £3,520,000 0 £0 £3,520,000

100% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%

Notes:

Total amount to devolve = 5,700,000 less 218 commissioned places at Alternative Provision

Devolving by Total Needs Budget identifies the incidence of where the pupils are and takes into account the NFF value weightings applied to each element.

The average number of Permanent Exclusions (PEX) over the last 5 years has then been used to obtain a weighting between the sectors that has been applied to uplift the secondary additional needs budgets

Allocations between the sectors has then been based on the weighted additional needs budgets.  

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



(Draft – Subject to approval at the next meeting of the Schools Forum Working Group.) 

 

Notes of the Gloucestershire Schools Forum Working Group 
Wednesday 27 November 2019, in the Claydon Suite Board Room, Shire Hall 
 
Present members: Brian Bartlett, Primary School Governor; Colin Belford, Secondary 
School Headteacher; Elisa Entwistle, Alternative Provision; Andrew Harris, Community 
Representative (Chair); Kirsten Harrison, Secondary School Headteacher; Lisa Jones, 
Primary School Headteacher; David Metcalf, Primary School Headteacher; Will Morgan, 
Secondary School Headteacher; Steve Savory, Primary School Headteacher; Clare Smart, 
Special Schools Headteacher. 
Also in attendance: Paul Holroyd, Secondary School Headteacher; Nick Stanton, 
Alternative Provision. 
 
Officers: Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development; Jamie Ford, County 
Inclusion Development Lead; Neil Egles, Finance Manager, Schools, Strategy and Capital; 
Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Adviser and Clerk to the Schools Forum. 
 
Apologies: Peter Hales, Primary School Governor; Amanda Horniman, Early Years 
representative; Sarah Murphy, Trade Unions. 
 
1. Notes of the previous meetings 
 
The notes of the previous meetings held on 9 May 2019 and 17 October 2019 were 
approved as a correct record. 
 
2. The Service Level Agreement 
 
2.1 The Group considered the draft Service Level Agreement (SLA) and Working 
Guidance for the Secondary Cluster Inclusion Partnership. The SLA sets out the role and 
responsibilities between Gloucestershire County Council and the schools who constitute 
Secondary Inclusions Clusters for the funding of behaviour improvement in schools and 
alternative education where applicable. 
 
2.2 Officers explained that they were working on developing the pilot to test how the 
Secondary Cluster Inclusion Partnership could operate and how the secondary schools 
could work together collaboratively.  Initial discussions had taken place with all but two of 
the secondary headteachers and with the pastoral leads.  Key themes had emerged from 
the feedback received and this had assisted in the development of the SLA.  Other themes 
for testing through the pilot had also been identified and were being considered.  
 
2.3 Officers had determined from those discussions that ultimately there was support for 
the key principles and agreement that funding to support pupils with special educational 
needs and behavioural issues should be focused at an earlier stage, to reduce the 
requirement for those students to leave mainstream education.   
 
2.4 Officers explained that KS3 students were only expected to be considered for Higher 
Alternative Provision in very exceptional circumstances. 
 
2.5 In response to a question, Jamie Ford, County Inclusion Development Lead, 
explained that as part of the 3-tiered model the expectation was for all schools to provide a 
baseline support consistent with that of the other schools in their cluster.  Members 

Page 39



(Draft – Subject to approval at the next meeting of the Schools Forum Working Group.) 

 

emphasised that the definition of the expected baseline needed to be made clear to all 
schools.  A member commented that baseline support provision implied that schools would 
have access to a range of professional services; schools would need to be able to access 
this on a timely basis when required.   
 
2.6 A question was asked on who or which services would form the ‘Team around the 
Cluster’, and whether there would be any capacity within the system to provide this given 
how over-stretched the system was.  Officers confirmed that discussions were taking place 
with the relevant teams. An element of pump-priming to rearrange and enhance capacity 
would be required, the details of which were being worked on.  Funding would also become 
available to finance those support services, following the reduction in permanent exclusions 
and associated costs, resulting from the new way of working. 
 
2.7 The County Inclusion Development Lead explained that funds would be devolved in 
several chunks throughout the year to enable review at each stage.  Schools would need to 
sign up to the SLA to have access to the cluster funding.  The Group emphasised that the 
governing body of schools would also need to be signed up to the SLA not just the 
headteachers. 
 
2.8 Officers were working on how schools could advocate within their local inclusion 
cluster to decide how best the needs could be met, and to allocate funding and commission 
services effectively to provide value. The third sector was keen to be involved.  It was 
recognised that schools were in need of increased social care support and consideration 
would need to be given as this could be provided.   
 
2.9 A member raised concerns in relation to how realistic the proposed timeline of the pilot 
was when taking into account the associated transitional issues.  Officers recognised that it 
was critical that the resulting model was effective, and that there was a stable transition.  It 
was acknowledged that the pilot may need to start later than planned, and run for an 
extended period if necessary. 
 
2.10 Elisa Entwistle, Alternative Provision representative, pointed out that the cost of 
Alternative Provision would need to increase if the number of pupils on roll decreased.  She 
emphasised that under the current timeline there would be a timing issue of when the 
Alternative Provision Service would know enough about what budget/SLA funding was to 
be allocated, to be able to plan staffing levels.  She commented that if the Alternative 
Provision service was reduced as a result of less funding, and then the pilot was not 
successful, the capacity would no longer be available unless it could be guaranteed during 
the pilot by the service continuing as before with same level of funding. 
 
2.11 In response, the Head of Education Strategy and Development emphasised that 
ultimately a new way of working was required to improve young people’s life chances.  The 
pilot would provide a vast evaluation process on how the new model could work.  Officers 
explained that they were conscious not to over resource the pilot, to avoid the risk of a false 
result. 
 
2.12 It was noted that Gloucestershire had the highest level of permanent exclusions due to 
drug and alcohol related incidents than any other authority in the South West.  This may be 
due to Gloucestershire schools enforcing a strict zero tolerance approach.  It was also 
noted that Gloucestershire was the highest permanent excluding authority in the south 

Page 40



(Draft – Subject to approval at the next meeting of the Schools Forum Working Group.) 

 

west, but Gloucestershire’s figures for fixed term exclusions were low in comparison to 
others.   
 
2.13 There was recognition that early intervention was the key to preventing an exclusion.  
Officers acknowledged that there needed to be an improved strategy to allocate funding at 
an earlier stage, outside of the constrained and expensive Education Health and Care Plan 
process, such as through a My Plan or a My Plan Plus.   
 
2.14 A member indicated that it would be of value for further data analysis to be undertaken 
on permanent exclusions, to identify if there were any reasons why the school had not been 
able to provide the support to prevent the permanent exclusion (e.g. an underlying problem 
not addressed fully and early enough). 
 
2.15 A member pointed out that the success rate for Managed Moves was just 9%.  She 
emphasised that the Managed Move Protocol required review, schools needed to work 
collectively and the focus should be looking at whether a Managed Move could be an 
effective way forward for the child much earlier than currently.    
 
2.16 A member pointed out that the wording in the SLA regarding the responsibility for 
pupils in elective home education required revision.  It currently implied that schools within 
the cluster would hold the responsibility, whilst the child was still being home educated. 
 
2.17 In response to a question, the County Inclusion Development Lead explained that the 
Local Authority would appoint the Cluster Strategic Chair and the expectation was that the 
Chair would be a Locality Inclusion Lead from the Education Inclusion Service.  The plan 
was for the Cluster Strategic Panels to meet at least twice a year, and to have a policy in 
place for means of communication in exceptional circumstances. 
 
2.18 The Head of Education Strategy and Development informed the Group that work 
would continue on mapping out the pilot and establishing a more definitive timeline and 
point of transition. He anticipated there being two pilots in operation - one in Stroud and one 
in either the Forest of Dean or Cheltenham.  At key points in the timeline schools would be 
asked to provide feedback to enable assessment of whether the pilot was working 
effectively and achieving its aims. During this period the focus would also be on 
establishing the future position and funding of Alternative Provision.   He encouraged 
members of the Group to send any further feedback to him via email.    
 

3 Funding Formula – Allocation of funding primary/secondary split 
 
3.1 The Group was informed of the proposals for the funding formula for the Local 
Inclusion Clusters.  The proposed formula to allocate funding between primary and 
secondary schools involved two key elements: 
 
3.2 The first was the additional needs factors in the National Funding Formula (NFF) (Low 
Prior Attainment, Deprivation and English as an Additional Language).  This identified the 
incidence of where the pupils were and took into account the NFF value weightings applied 
to each of the additional needs elements. 
 

Page 41



(Draft – Subject to approval at the next meeting of the Schools Forum Working Group.) 

 

3.3 The second was the average number of permanent exclusions over the last 5 years. 
This had then been used to obtain a weighting between the sectors that had been applied 
to uplift the secondary additional needs budgets. 

3.4 The Group noted that when applied this formula allocated 29% of funding to Primary 
and 71% to Secondary. 
 
3.5 The Group indicated approval for the method and percentage allocation between the 
primary and secondary sectors. 
 
4. Funding Formula – Allocation of funding school/LINC split 

 
4.1 Officers presented information on a financial model which enabled the assessment of 
the impact of allocating the funding in the following different ways: - 100% allocation to 
clusters; 80% to clusters and 20% to schools; 50% to clusters and 50% to schools. 
 
4.2 It was explained that the effects of the different splits would be identified as part of the 
pilot, to establish and agree a baseline of support provision for additional needs.  Members 
reiterated that this was critical, to ensure consistency of provision across the clusters.   
 
4.3 A question was raised on whether the cluster percentage should be fixed the same for 
all in that sector or whether each cluster should be able to determine its own split. It was 
noted that the later would involve a risk of an inconsistent offer being available between the 
cluster areas.   
 
5. Next meeting 
 
5.1 The Group would meet again once the pilot projects had concluded to consider the 
feedback received.   
 
5.2 The focus of the Group in the Spring 2020 would be on developing a new model for 
using current EHCP funding in a more graduated way to support earlier intervention.  A 
meeting would be arranged in due course. 
 
 
 
Ends. 

Page 42



 
1. The attached workplan provides a guide for members of the items scheduled to be 

considered by the Forum at the meetings throughout 2020. 
 

2. The key priorities for the Schools Forum in 2020 are: 
 

2.1 Mainstream funding 
 To evaluate the impact of the 2020/21 funding allocation; which is delivering the 

National Funding Formula in full for the first time.   
 To ensure that effective oversight of schools in deficit or at risk of deficit is 

maintained and that recovery plans are in place for all schools in deficit. 
 To make representations to government on education funding, as an individual 

Forum or as part of wider campaign. 
 

2.2 High needs 
 To review the impact of key projects within the high needs strategy, particularly 

the approach to funding inclusion and early intervention.  
 To support design and implementation of a new approach to funding SEND 

through a working group. 
 To monitor spending and data trends. 
 To undertake a public consultation to gain feedback on potential options and 

approaches to developing a High Needs recovery plan. 
 

2.3 Early years 
 To review the childcare market and its impact on children, parents and the 
 school system. 
 To agree any changes to the early years funding model for 2020/21. 

 
2.4 Role and functions of the Forum 

To reassess the role and impact of the Forum in the light of its statutory 
responsibilities, current priorities in school funding and any developments in 
government guidance. 

 
3. The Forum is asked to note the workplan for 2020.  

 

Gloucestershire Schools Forum Workplan 2020 

Schools’ Forum Date 09 January 2020 

Type of Decision For information 

Background Documents  None 

Author Philip Haslett – Head of Education Strategy and 
Development 

Purpose of Report To inform members of the items requiring the Forum’s input 

in 2020 

Key Recommendations To note the Schools Forum Workplan 2020 

Resource Implications N/A 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



Schools Forum Workplan 2020 
 

Meeting date Item Purpose Content/Issue Lead officer 

Thursday 9 January 
 

 

Gloucestershire 
County Council 
Budget 
Consultation 
2020/21 
 
Funding 
Formula  
2020/21 
 
 
Early Years 
Funding 
 
High Needs 
 
 
F40 
 
 
Schools Forum 
Workplan 
 

Information 
 
 
 
 
 
Decision 
 
 
 
 
Decision 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Decision 
 
 

Consultation. 
 
 
 
 
 
Decisions on the local funding formula for 
mainstream funding.  Commentary on funding 
announcements for 2020/21. 
 
 
Agree the funding formula for 2020/21. 
 
 
Update on high needs. 
 
 
Update only – may be oral. 
 
 
Workplan for 2020. 
 
 

Suzanne Hall 
 
 
 
 
 
Philip Haslett/Neil 
Egles 
 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 
Philip Haslett 
 
 

Thursday 18 June Outturn and 
school balances 
2018/19 
 
High Needs 
 
 
F40 

Information 
 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Information 

Spending against DSG & DSG balances. 
 
 
 
To receive an update on high needs and agree 
plans for public consultation.   
 
Update only – may be oral. 

Suzanne Hall/Neil 
Egles 
 
 
Head of 
Education 
Strategy and 
Development 

P
age 44



 
 
Meeting dates 
2020 

 
 
Information  
 

 
 
To note meeting dates in 2020. 

 
 
Joanne Bolton 

Thursday 17 
September 

 
School Funding 
2021/22 
 
High Needs 
 
 
Capital  
 
 
 
 
F40 
 
 

 
Decision 
 
 
Information 
 
 
Information  
 
 
 
 
Information 

 
To consider the formula for 2021/22, de-
delegations etc. 
 
To receive an update on high needs and progress 
of the public consultation.   
 
To receive an update on capital funding 
allocations and expenditure, progress on major 
capital projects and funding priorities for  
 
 
Update – may be oral. 

 
Head of  
Education 
Strategy and 
Development 
 
 
Gareth Vine 
 
 
Head of 
Education 
Strategy and 
Development 

Thursday 12 November School funding 
2021/22 
 
 
High Needs 
 
 
 
 
F40 

Decision 
 
 
 
Information 
 
 
 
 
Information 

To consider the impact of the 2020/21 funding 
arrangements; assess the impact of funding 
announcements/details for 21/22. 
 
To receive an update on high needs and agree 
approach to 21/22 budget (based on consultation 
outcome). 
 
 
Update – may be oral. 

Head of  
Education 
Strategy and 
Development/ 
Suzanne Hall/ 
Neil Egles 
 
Head of 
Education 
Strategy and 
Development 
 

P
age 45



Working Group 
(Dates to be arranged) 

High Needs Consultation and 
design 

To explore the design and implementation of a 
new approach to funding SEND, with a focus on 
providing funding for earlier intervention and 
support.  

Head of 
Education 
Strategy and 
Development 
 

 

P
age 46


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Action sheet 14 November 2019

	5 Gloucestershire County Council Budget Consultation 2020/21
	6 Dedicated Schools Grant 2020/21
	Schools Forum - Funding attendance and MASH

	7 Early Years Funding 2020/21
	8 High Needs
	Schools Forum Working Group - 27 November 2019

	9 Schools Forum Workplan 2020

